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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Welcome to the

          3  Committee on Transportation. We have a few bills

          4  that are before us today that we will consider. One

          5  of them is the infamous 676-A, and of course, we

          6  also have 858, as well. Both are related to our

          7  City's vibrant tree population, and the importance

          8  of trees in the City of New York.

          9                 As a New Yorker, as a Brooklynite, I

         10  know the importance of having trees, because when I

         11  was, as long as I am in the City Council, and prior

         12  to that as a District Manager, I fought hard to make

         13  sure that more trees are planted, and more money

         14  goes into the budget so we could have trees planted

         15  in the City of New York.

         16                 What's interesting is that the

         17  Brooklyn Delegation was always famous for putting

         18  more money into the budget, when administrations

         19  prior to this one would always try to cut forestry

         20  and cut the Parks Department. We always put money

         21  back, and as a result, I'm proud to say that

         22  Brooklyn has a lot of trees and a lot of beautiful

         23  parks.

         24                 I also spent a lot of time with Henry

         25  Stern designing some parks in my area. I'm proud to
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          2  say that I have a park that's used as a model for

          3  the City with a park for kids.

          4                 I am also proud to say that we took a

          5  lot, an empty lot in my district, that was vacant

          6  that was under HPD's control, we got it from HPD,

          7  the Parks Department and today that's the Todd lot

          8  on Curtalia Road (phonetic), a beautiful, beautiful

          9  place, which we just renamed in honor of a slain

         10  police officer.

         11                 But, obviously, sometimes when we try

         12  to do something that's right, people try to turn on

         13  us, and Intro. No. 676-A deals with disputing

         14  reports that developers and private -- a disturbing

         15  report, that developers and private home-owners are

         16  asked to pay exorbitant fees for Parks Department

         17  services.

         18                 A letter, which is addressed to one

         19  of my constituents, Stanley Scherer, which is

         20  available for people that want it, basically tells

         21  somebody, in order for them to take down that tree,

         22  they have to do everything except giving up their

         23  first born for sacrifice. It requires them to prune

         24  80 trees in the neighborhood, it requires to put in

         25  20 new trees, and a gift, which I don't call a gift,
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          2  of $5,000 to the City Parks Foundation. I think

          3  that's wrong.

          4                 When someone wants to improve their

          5  property, including putting new housing, rebuilding

          6  their house, putting money into their property, they

          7  end up putting a lot of money afterwards in taxes.

          8  In fact, if someone constructs a new house in the

          9  City of New York, a one or two-family, if they keep

         10  as is, then they are in this protected, of the one,

         11  two-family not paying full value of their house. But

         12  if they reconstruct the house, and build a brand new

         13  house, they are assessed at full value.

         14                 Could you imagine some of these homes

         15  that are assessed at full value, what kind of taxes

         16  they are paying to the City of New York? We should

         17  encourage them to do so, and if there is a tree in

         18  the way because of that, they don't want to just

         19  tear down the trees, they want to replant them.

         20                 In fact, many people come to me, that

         21  they have this old tree that is dying, and they want

         22  to take it down because they want to plant more

         23  trees, beautiful trees, that will live and be

         24  healthy and so forth, and they can't do it because

         25  there is all kinds of conditions set.
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          2                 So, we decided enough of this, it

          3  shouldn't be left up to one person, we don't need an

          4  arbidon, we just need an individual that's going to

          5  follow the law, and will follow the guidelines. And

          6  what we are going to do today, the bill that we have

          7  today, which I'm glad to say we came to an

          8  agreement, I want to thank Josh Filler, I want to

          9  thank the Mayor's office an many people in the

         10  Administration who realize that we are interested in

         11  trees, we are not interested in taking down trees.

         12  And what this bill will be, a bill which will

         13  measure and have testimony regarding the bill, which

         14  will measure the condition of the tree, and

         15  accordingly will require on this guidelines, written

         16  guidelines in the local law, how you replace these

         17  trees, and no other additional charges can be added

         18  because you are taking down a tree. And our intent

         19  is not to encourage people to take down trees. Our

         20  intent is to keep as many trees up and to plant more

         21  trees, but there are times when people are doing

         22  construction when they want to add more trees and

         23  they want to beautify their neighborhood, and we

         24  will hear testimony from owners who will tell you

         25  exactly what they want, and as a result we will have
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          2  more trees, not less trees, and more trees will last

          3  a lot longer, not less trees.

          4                 This is something that is real

          5  important to us, and as a result we will have this

          6  hearing today and I ask that the Commissioner begin

          7  the testimony, and as staff mentioned to me now,

          8  that the staff, the report that you have on 676-A

          9  does not reflect the new changes. The new changes we

         10  have are, as we are speaking are being printed up,

         11  and this is a result of negotiations that took place

         12  this morning, and it's basically the same guideline

         13  for 676-A, which now something which we fine-tune,

         14  which I think everybody could come to an agreement.

         15                 I also in particular want to thank

         16  somebody here, and we are going to hear testimony

         17  from him.

         18                 At our last hearing, when we had this

         19  issue about replacing trees, again, people thought

         20  that our intentions were to do with less trees, and

         21  I am appalled by those people who are misled, I

         22  don't blame you because obviously you were given

         23  more information, but the people behind it who were

         24  giving the misinformation, I am appalled by their

         25  behavior. And particularly I am appalled by a letter
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          2  that went out by the Parks Department just the other

          3  day which basically talks about calling your Council

          4  Members, and that's why you were inundated with so

          5  many phone calls, and, again, the letter was full of

          6  lies, it had not one inch of truth in that letter,

          7  and I am appalled by that, and I believe that the

          8  people should know what is going on.

          9                 And in particular, there was one

         10  individual who testified last time, and it's Paul

         11  Berizzi from the Environmental Action Coalition, and

         12  I want to thank you, Paul. At the last hearing Paul

         13  came forward and said, listen, there is a way of

         14  doing this where it is good for the home-owner and

         15  it is good for the City, and you are not far off,

         16  why don't you hear me out. And he spent a lot of

         17  time with the staff, the City Council staff, to come

         18  up with a bill, in fact even this morning we are

         19  going to have testimony from him, and we also want

         20  to thank his co-chair, former Commissioner Marilyn

         21  Gelber, who had a lot of input on this. And as a

         22  result of Paul's input we have a bill today that

         23  everybody could live with and everybody likes. So,

         24  Paul, thank you once again for your input.

         25                 And I appreciate the calls we got,
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          2  because when we got the calls yesterday, we took the

          3  time out to explain to everybody what we were going

          4  to do and as a result people were very supportive.

          5  And I think what people want is guidelines that we

          6  could abide by, and it's not discretion up to

          7  anybody. Because, you know, the Commissioners come

          8  and go and the next Commissioner decided, this is

          9  what he or she wants to do, and we need guidelines

         10  which are going to be set in stone which will allow

         11  for what people, the guidelines of how people can

         12  replace trees, and how the replacement of trees take

         13  place.

         14                 So, I'm glad that we have come to a

         15  bill, I appreciate from Council members and the

         16  Committee members who were so concerned about this,

         17  we worked hard on this and we finally have something

         18  we could proudly vote on that everybody could agree

         19  upon.

         20                 So, Commissioner, welcome, and the

         21  floor is yours.

         22                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 First I want to point out that the

         25  Council, the City Council of New York historically
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          2  had a warm and supportive relationship to trees.

          3  This Council passed the strongest arborside bill in

          4  the United States. This Council regularly provides

          5  additional funds for trees, for tree planting and

          6  tree pruning. As you pointed out, the Brooklyn

          7  Delegation, in particular, provides a supplement to

          8  forestry, because there are so many beautiful trees

          9  in your borough. So, we are not ideologically

         10  opposed. And we appreciate the City Council's

         11  efforts in the past on behalf of trees, because

         12  trees are beautiful.

         13                 As we all know, they provide shelter,

         14  they clean the air, they provide beauty, they

         15  enhance the value of homes, they cool you in the

         16  summer, they warm you in the winter, it's a miracle

         17  of nature occurring before us, and I'm delighted

         18  that we are on the same side.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You can say miracle

         20  of God, it's all right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, you could

         22  say a miracle -- in your neighborhood, a miracle of

         23  God.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Well, it's all --

         25                 COMMISSIONER STERN: All
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          2  neighborhoods, of course, because he is everywhere.

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: In New York City

          5  believe there is a miracle of God as well.

          6                 COMMISSIONER STERN: I agree.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STERN: I don't differ on

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         11                 COMMISSIONER STERN: And we do our

         12  little bit here on earth as elves to assist this

         13  miracle come about because we have to plant the

         14  trees to make them grow. So we start together.

         15                 Your remarks are sort of like the

         16  olive branch and the arrows. The olive branch was

         17  the proposal that you made, which we appreciate and

         18  think is a good and constructive one. The arrows

         19  describing previous incidence and correspondence, I

         20  think has been not to respond to in a session like

         21  this because all you do is get into a he said, she

         22  said.

         23                 We think that everything we did was

         24  correct and proper. We think that when you ask

         25  people for money or trees, what we call
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          2  environmental mitigation. You cannot damage a tree

          3  that is part of the common heritage, the street

          4  tree, without doing something to make up for that

          5  damage, and although we differ as to how much or

          6  where or the details and the arrangement, I think

          7  that both the Council and the Administration support

          8  the principle of environmental mitigation for damage

          9  caused by the removal of trees, whether it's done by

         10  accident, or whether it's done in the course of

         11  construction, or whether it's done for other

         12  reasons. So, we're together on that.

         13                 Now, I'm glad that so many people are

         14  here and that so many people responded on behalf of

         15  the tree community, because as you know, trees

         16  cannot speak for themselves. They only whisper in

         17  the wind. We have to come down and be their

         18  advocates. They are our silent friends and

         19  sentinels.

         20                 Now, in New York City's landscape of

         21  touring skyscrapers and acres of asphalt, street

         22  trees offer beauty and shade and bring a sense of

         23  peace and natural order to our busy, crowded city.

         24  They, as I said, increase property values, they

         25  reduce energy consumption so needed today through
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          2  shade and insulation. They moderate extreme

          3  temperatures, humidity and winds and they improve

          4  air quality by removing pollutants, such as carbon

          5  monoxide, sulfur dioxide and ozone. These benefits

          6  increase exponentially as the tree grows larger, so

          7  the bigger the tree geometrically, the greater the

          8  benefits to the community and the greater its value.

          9                 Now, the bill that, as amended, is we

         10  think enormously improved, and we appreciate the

         11  spirit of reconciliation and compromise to that has

         12  been shown by both sides. The original bill would

         13  have had, as we alleged, a devastating impact on New

         14  York City street trees, which is no longer the case,

         15  and I am very happy to say that, because peace is

         16  better than war.

         17                 Now, what we have agreement and

         18  principle, we still need to review the new language

         19  carefully, we just received it this morning, and we

         20  have questions or concerns, we want to bring them up

         21  with Council and with staff in order to achieve a

         22  bill which will be perfectly agreeable and will

         23  protect the trees while not unduly burdening anyone.

         24  So, we have until February 27th to do that, and we

         25  expect to use the time constructively and we are
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          2  working in the spirit of cooperation.

          3                 So there we are. What do they say?

          4  Peace at last.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I accept that olive

          6  branch.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Good.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I wish we could

          9  do the same thing in the Middle East as well. And

         10  you know my strong feelings about trees and grass

         11  and the things that we have been fighting for all of

         12  these years.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STERN: I know your

         14  strong feelings in many areas, Councilman Dear.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I also figured

         16  maybe this was a little payback of you being nice to

         17  me because I even allowed you to use my desk, your

         18  former desk.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, you did. You

         20  did, when I was first elected.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And the telephones,

         22  and I didn't sent you a bill for the telephone calls

         23  or anything like that.

         24                 What I hope that we can get together

         25  on the bill is that we came to an agreement that is
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          2  fair and that's something that I think both the

          3  home-owners have to recognize, that we don't

          4  encourage taking down trees, but if there is a

          5  reason, a valid reason to take down trees, this is

          6  what you are going to have to do to replace it, and

          7  it's not just one little sapling, it's obviously a

          8  measurement that we are going to extend it that we

          9  are going to use, that will be acceptable to you,

         10  and obviously to --

         11                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, the basic

         12  principle is wood for wood, that's what we seek. And

         13  that's reflected in the legislation with set-offs.

         14  If the tree is deteriorated, which we agree to,

         15  because if a tree is half dead, you didn't have to

         16  pay full price. That's fair and reasonable.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand.

         18                 I know that you have a policy, and I

         19  don't want to get into any questions, just on the

         20  trees itself. I know that this is a very strong

         21  policy of yours, the tree has some life to it, you

         22  do not want to take it down.

         23                 Obviously we are having a serious

         24  problem, and in particular, I think that's why these

         25  home-owners see it, and I have seen it myself. I
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          2  watched a tree, which by the way, I want to thank

          3  your Borough Commissioner who is doing a wonderful

          4  job, who has big responsibility because he has to

          5  deal with your office and he has to deal with the

          6  elected officials.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STERN: They are not

          8  difficult to --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Not him. Not him. I

         10  think he is in trouble now.

         11                 I just want to say something, a

         12  comment, on what we are talking about. We are, take

         13  Commissioner Spiegel, we come from two different

         14  backgrounds, although we are both the same faith,

         15  but different approaches to our faith, but yet he

         16  and I can get along and we understand the issues and

         17  I respect him very much. And one thing I enjoy about

         18  him is he is on of the few people I could speak a

         19  language which was taught to me when I was a young

         20  child, is Yiddish. There are not many people I can

         21  speak Yiddish to, and he is the only Commissioner of

         22  the City of New York that I can have a full

         23  conversation in Yiddish to him. He teaches me more

         24  about Yiddish than I ever knew, so thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 But going back to trees, and this is

          3  something that I think you have to recognize. We

          4  took a tree, but there came a storm but it fell over

          5  on the house, it did a tremendous amount of damage.

          6  We have to look that there are trees, although there

          7  may be some life to it, that they are going to be a

          8  danger, a storm, a rain storm, a snow storm, a wood

          9  storm, which we have had in the years.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Acts of God.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Acts of God, that's

         12  right. You are learning. You are getting the

         13  picture.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: But I need you to

         16  understand, there are times that we have to

         17  understand that these trees have to come down and

         18  not wait until it comes down on someone's house.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay, may I

         20  respond?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER STERN: On questions like

         23  that, I want to leave it to the judgment of the

         24  professional foresters.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STERN: This young lady

          3  is a graduate to the Yale School of Forestry

          4  Environmental Studies, don't hold it against her.

          5  And she is very knowledgeable in these areas, and

          6  she has a staff of people who are similarly trained.

          7                 If we had an issue, I will be guided

          8  by her judgment, rather than impose it on her.

          9                 But I must tell you, there are also

         10  many people who don't like trees for aesthetic

         11  reasons who don't share your values and who come to

         12  plead with us, this tree is dead, this tree is

         13  dying, you look at it, it is pretty healthy,

         14  healthier than they are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: See, she might have

         16  been trained in Yale, I have been trained in the

         17  Yeshiva University School of Forestry, and I learned

         18  from being a Brooklyn boy what trees are all about.

         19  You don't have to be a graduate of any school to

         20  understand when a tree is dead or when it's alive,

         21  and the proof of it, because I have had this

         22  argument in all the time, is when the tree comes

         23  down on someone's house, what do you say then.

         24                 And this is part of the problem, we

         25  are having a difficulty where we are going to
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          2  continue having this, and I hope that you recognize

          3  that and understand that. And I will prove it, it is

          4  very interesting. A tree on my block, at the end of

          5  my block, I walk by there every day and I am

          6  watching one storm branch come down, another storm,

          7  another branch comes down. When do we decide that

          8  the tree should come down and replace it with some

          9  other beautiful trees? And that's what it's all

         10  about, and that's why I want to try to change that

         11  policy.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay, the

         13  forester tells me that we apply professional

         14  standard to hazard conditions and that trees

         15  sometimes come down for other reasons as not being

         16  dead, there are alive trees, there are healthy

         17  trees. The tree that came down in that tragedy, that

         18  killed those four girls in Queens, which was by far

         19  the worst tree tragedy ever in the history of New

         20  York City from years ago, that was a healthy tree.

         21  It was not a dead tree or a dying tree, it was

         22  relatively healthy and it was the victim of an

         23  enormous and powerful storm, and it was because it

         24  had so many branches and leaves, it was in leaf,

         25  that the power of the winds destroyed it.
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          2                 So, you cannot say that every time a

          3  tree falls it is because the tree was in bad

          4  condition.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I will, by

          6  the way, I would like to have one of your people --

          7  one particular tree, I know what I think about that

          8  tree.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STERN: We will look at

         10  the tree.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Together. I want to

         12  look at it together. You tell me if that is healthy.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Together, we will

         14  look together.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You can join us as

         16  well.

         17                 Council Member Lopez. I would like to

         18  just do these questions quickly, because we have

         19  some other testimony and we want to pass the bill.

         20                 Council Member Lopez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         22                 Commissioner, it is my understanding

         23  that you have a rule in which in order to plant a

         24  tree in front of the property of somebody, whoever

         25  that person is, it has to be written permission in
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          2  order to plant that tree from the Parks Department;

          3  that is correct?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STERN: I don't think it

          5  is a rule but it is a practice we have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It's a

          7  practice.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STERN: It's a practice

          9  we have. It's a practice.

         10                 We look for the consent of the

         11  home-owner, because we feel that if a tree is

         12  planted in front of a private home against the

         13  wishes of a home-owner, that tree is not likely to

         14  do very well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. And what

         16  is the procedure that you use in order to get the

         17  permission of the home-owner or the property owner,

         18  to plant the tree?

         19                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay, we ask. Do

         20  you want to explain that?

         21                 MS. WATT: We get --

         22                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Fiona Watt, Chief

         23  of Forestry.

         24                 MS. WATT: We get most of our tree

         25  planting locations from the Community Boards of all
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          2  boroughs, and those come through requests that

          3  home-owners have submitted to the community boards.

          4                 We are dealing with a world where we

          5  don't have unlimited resources. We choose people who

          6  want trees to plant the trees that we are able to

          7  plant.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But you don't

          9  have power to look into the requests of the

         10  community boards, in order to prove that indeed that

         11  home-owner was consulted on this issue?

         12                 MS. WATT: Oh, yes, we do. The

         13  home-owners generally submit a written request to

         14  the community board that they would like a tree.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         16                 MS. WATT: Now there is always some

         17  conflict. We sometimes get husbands that request a

         18  tree and wives that didn't want a tree, and we only

         19  find out when we go to plant the tree --

         20                 COMMISSIONER STERN: We had that in

         21  Queens, there have been some bitter domestic

         22  disputes over the planting of a tree.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then is my

         24  understanding for your testimony that you request

         25  written consent, or written notification to you, in
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          2  order to be able to plant that tree in front of the

          3  property?

          4                 MS. WATT: Over 90 percent of the

          5  cases, again, we want to give trees to people who

          6  want them. We do not want to plant trees for people

          7  who don't want trees, they are much less likely to

          8  survive. So, we get our tree requests, our

          9  locations, from people who say they want trees.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then you don't

         11  have no problem in asking permission to locate these

         12  trees in there?

         13                 COMMISSIONER STERN: No problem.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No problem.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STERN: We have a limited

         16  number of trees, they cost us about $500 a piece. We

         17  would rather plant a tree in front of the home of

         18  someone who wants one, than in front of the home of

         19  someone who doesn't want one. Common sense.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. Thank you

         21  for the answer to that question. I just want to make

         22  a comment, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 I receive a lot of faxes, I receive a

         24  lot of calls in my office, insulting me, some of

         25  them, threatening me, some of them, for lies that
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          2  were told to the people in my community, and I don't

          3  know who started that campaign, I don't know for

          4  what purpose they did it, but they told the people

          5  in my community that I was going to pass a bill

          6  today that will go cutting trees and never replacing

          7  them. I want to make clear to the members in my

          8  community that it is not true, that that is not

          9  accurate, that totally the opposite. That I want my

         10  community to have more trees, and I thank the

         11  confidence that the people in my community have on

         12  me, because when they called my community, what that

         13  did was to facilitate more communication between

         14  them and I, and I thanked them for calling me.

         15                 What I do not appreciate is the lack

         16  of information that is accurate and lies that were

         17  told to the people in my community in regard to this

         18  bill.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay. I don't

         21  know anything about such lies.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: She is making

         23  comments about the letter that you sent out.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STERN can I make a brief

         25  statement on the letter?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 I think the letter was, I don't want

          3  to get into an argument over it, but I think it was

          4  a good letter. I think it is necessary to call

          5  people. I am so glad this room is packed today with

          6  people who care about trees, or maybe they are

          7  people for the bill, whatever it is, I am glad there

          8  are people here because it's an important issue,

          9  whatever side they're on. I'm happy that they're

         10  here, I'm happy that they care about trees.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand. And

         12  we agreed. You know, let's move on.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, my

         15  comment is not about the letter. My comment is about

         16  misinformation that was distributed in my community

         17  through a telephone campaign, that's what I'm

         18  talking about.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I addressed

         20  that in my remarks, in my opening remarks. And I

         21  agree with you. I said that was wrong, and I said it

         22  to the Commissioner privately, and I say it now,

         23  that is not an appropriate way of doing things. But

         24  we are moving on from this now.

         25                 But in regard to what Council Member
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          2  Lopez asked you, regarding permission of a tree,

          3  Council Member Lopez has a bill before us that makes

          4  it a local law that you have to get permission from

          5  the home-owner before you plant the tree. Would you

          6  have a problem with such a law?

          7                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, it is our

          8  practice. But there may be situations in the future

          9  where it may really be in the public interest to put

         10  a tree somewhere, maybe a home-owner, maybe an

         11  absentee, someone who has no legitimate --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, but they still

         13  own the property.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, but --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You have to

         16  understand something. The reason why people are

         17  cynics, I have to tell you --

         18                 COMMISSIONER STERN: What?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: There are people

         20  that want trees planted, and they call my office,

         21  they want more trees. But I know homeowners who will

         22  not put a tree, if the tree went down they say thank

         23  God, I want trees, not in front of my house, the

         24  front of my neighbor's house, and the reason for it

         25  is several fold, and that's why we have a few bills
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          2  before us today: One is if they have to have it cut

          3  down, because they are remodeling the house, they

          4  will never be able to take it down.

          5                 Two, the damage that trees cause, my

          6  plumber told me, never have a tree in front of your

          7  house because those roots will kill your plumbing

          8  and cost you fortunes and fortunes of money to

          9  replace the sewer lines and the water mains.

         10                 I will tell you, I am telling you a

         11  fact. And in addition to that, in addition to that,

         12  the uprooting of sidewalks, how many sidewalks are

         13  uprooted, and what happens is, you are responsible,

         14  you get the violations from the City, you have to

         15  fix it, and it cost a lot of money. And we have

         16  seniors in Staten Island and Queens, and Council

         17  Member Oddo who had people testify here on a bill

         18  originally that we had, and Council Member Stabile

         19  had a bill, we all put in bills, obviously people

         20  don't want those trees in front of them if the City

         21  is not going to take responsibility also to partner

         22  if there is a problem because of the tree, and

         23  that's why this law that Council Member Lopez is

         24  proposing sounds good to me.

         25                 So, we are not passing it today but
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          2  it is something to consider.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STERN: All right, I

          4  thank you for that.

          5                 But you should not demonize these

          6  trees. If these trees going into a sewer, it is only

          7  because they are thirsty for precious water. You

          8  drink every day, doesn't a tree have that right?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Henry, Commissioner

         10  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Henry is fine. Or

         12  Star Quest, if you like.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Star Quest, thank

         14  you, by the way, from changing my name from flood to

         15  arc, more positive. And I have an arc that allows,

         16  that represents a name that would save the world, I

         17  want to try to do that, too, in my little way in the

         18  City Council. But I have to be reasonable too.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And people, the

         21  problem with trees, no one is against trees, but if

         22  we are going to take the archaic way, and the old

         23  way of thinking that the tree is right and the

         24  home-owner is always wrong, then we are going to

         25  have a serious problem. But we could compromise. The
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          2  problem is, when you put in that tree, make sure

          3  that you become a partner with that tree with the

          4  home-owner in case any damage takes place, that we

          5  don't put the entire burden on some senior citizen

          6  that doesn't have money to pay out, to lay out the

          7  thousands of dollars to fix that sidewalk, or to fix

          8  the sewer line. You know, they want that tree for

          9  shade and for beauty and for health and everything

         10  else, but they also don't have the money to pay when

         11  it comes along with the trees. So, maybe we should

         12  put money in the budget to help people, in that

         13  sense, that a tree is a partner with the homeowner?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STERN: That would not be

         15  a problem for us.

         16                 I understand, I am told that DOT does

         17  not charge when it redoes sidewalks.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You are wrong, but

         19  that's okay.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STERN: I know I may be,

         21  notice I say I am told.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: All right, let's

         23  move on.

         24                 Council Member Stabile and then

         25  McCaffrey.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you.

          3  Am I loud enough? It's a little further away from

          4  me.

          5                 First of all --

          6                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Push it closer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I did push

          8  the button.

          9                 Now we got it, Henry -- Star Quest.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Thank you, Big

         11  Bear.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Big Bear. Big

         13  Bear, okay? All right, I have three important

         14  factors that have to be brought out. This bill, the

         15  way it has been revised, and if Corporate Counsel

         16  comes back with a straight answer I will support it

         17  and 100 percent.

         18                 But I have a very serious person --

         19  first of all, if we are going to talk about Borough

         20  Commissioners, I have the best. Commissioner Murphy

         21  is the best. The most responsive man that I have

         22  ever met in my life, okay? So, I am very happy with

         23  my Parks Department. My Parks Department, and you at

         24  the helm, are very good for us.

         25                 My problem, I don't want an army
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          2  camp, I don't want the streets to look like an army

          3  camp, where there is not a tree. I want trees

          4  planted, I want the beauty of the trees, I want them

          5  taken care of.

          6                 My problem goes a little further. The

          7  bill that was scheduled today and was pulled, and I

          8  thank the Chairman and the Administration.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It was at your

         10  request that the bill was pulled.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, I know,

         12  it was at my request to pull the bill.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So we shouldn't

         14  discuss it today now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And let me

         16  just touch on it because I think Henry -- Mr.

         17  Chairman, please indulge with me, is a very

         18  important factor, Noach over there stole some of my

         19  thunder, but let me explain something to you and to

         20  the people who are the experts.

         21                 The problem where occurring in New

         22  York City, especially in the outer boroughs, is when

         23  the trees become two to three years old, they lift

         24  up the sidewalks. They lift the sidewalks in a

         25  manner that the sidewalk is now unsafe. It is not
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          2  only unsafe for every pedestrian, but to people who

          3  are physically or mentally challenged. It's unsafe

          4  to children, it is unsafe to the elderly, it's

          5  unsafe. New York City DOT comes along and gives them

          6  a written notice. It may not be a violation, but

          7  it's a notice that they got 45 days to repair it. If

          8  that person repairs it, it's their responsibility to

          9  hire a contractor, get the permit from DOT, rip up

         10  the sidewalk, bend it in touch with your Department

         11  to trim the roots of the tree, now then we have to

         12  get the contractor back to fill it in and put the

         13  concrete. That's the method we are going through

         14  right now.

         15                 My bill was designed, and it will

         16  come back up, thanks to the Chairman and to the

         17  Speaker and, of course, the Administration, I really

         18  wanted to see it pass, would be my flag, let's say.

         19  I want to put that flag in the ground. It is unfair

         20  to a senior citizen who now is forced to not only

         21  repair their sidewalk, but the burden of the repair,

         22  and that's what discourages people from wanting a

         23  tree.

         24                 Now, I put in, you mentioned

         25  community boards. Okay community boards, they got
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          2  their say. But every Council Member also puts in, I

          3  put in over maybe 100 to 200 tree requests that I

          4  get during the course of the year. I am very proud

          5  of that. We just did again on Crossbay Boulevard, we

          6  planted trees --

          7                 COMMISSIONER STERN: And we plant

          8  them.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: In Rockaway

         10  -- we planted, yes.

         11                 COMMISSIONER STERN: In response to

         12  your request.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, because

         14  I have asked for it. Which is fantastic, it adds a

         15  beauty to a neighborhood. It adds a life to a

         16  neighborhood. We need trees. I happen to agree with

         17  you.

         18                 My only thing that sticks in my

         19  throat and it sticks in my heart, I cannot see a

         20  senior citizen living on $600 a month, paying $4,000

         21  because a tree that we planted ripped up her

         22  sidewalk. It is not fair. It is not economically

         23  fair.

         24                 I am not asking the City to go back

         25  and replace everything for the last six years, or
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          2  the last year, or even put this bill in respective

          3  to go back, but there has to be a timely time frame,

          4  where if the City is going to do it, let the City do

          5  it, but give us a time frame to work with so we

          6  don't feel that we are put into a situation.

          7                 Now, I am talking, believe me, Star

          8  Quest, I am not talking about removing that tree,

          9  and I am not talking about damaging that tree, I am

         10  just talking about making it -- if you remember

         11  115th Street in Richmond Hill, we had a situation

         12  there was a very elderly tree, it was a beautiful

         13  tree, it was an asset to the community. We had to

         14  make the sidewalk almost handicapped accessible,

         15  just to cover the roots, how high they were.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STERN: It was a

         17  beautiful tree.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: It was a

         19  beautiful tree. It was. A gorgeous tree. But we

         20  actually had to work with the contractor and DOT to

         21  make it go gradually up. This bill that we are

         22  passing today is one part, but I want you to

         23  remember one more thing, that even if a person wants

         24  a tree in front of their house, and I'm not

         25  disagreeing with Margarita Lopez on that factor, I
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          2  might disagree with some parts of it, but even if

          3  the person wants the tree, what discourages people

          4  is the lifting of the sidewalks.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Yes, we

          6  understand that. Is there someone from DOT here to

          7  respond?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: First of all, let

          9  me tell you, in all fairness, Mr. Stabile, you asked

         10  the Administration to call us to tell us to take the

         11  bill off. It is not before us so we will have

         12  discussion when we have your bill before us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The only

         14  reason why I went into it was because you went into

         15  it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Because my bill is

         17  on.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, you

         19  opened up the door so I had to answer the bill that

         20  I put into it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: All right, okay.

         22                 Council Member McCaffrey. I just want

         23  to shorten it because I have got to move on. I've

         24  got all these people who want to testify.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.
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          2  Chairman, I appreciate the fact that we are trying

          3  to get to the resuscitation of the trees in a few

          4  moments, and rather than to turn this into what it

          5  was, the Burnam (phonetic) tree coming to Dunsonane

          6  (phonetic), so we understand that.

          7                 But, Commissioner, one of the items

          8  that I think we all have here as a concern is that

          9  the public does not understand what the policy is,

         10  regardless of what we are about to set as the

         11  policy.

         12                 Prospectively what is it that we are

         13  going to do for individual property owners to

         14  understand what their obligation is, what their

         15  rights are, so that the public's concerns are

         16  addressed. There is a great gap in terms of the

         17  information that the public has available to it.

         18                 So, for example, in the bill here

         19  there are a series of ways to define whether or not

         20  a tree is dead. Well, in some cases someone is going

         21  to look up there and they are going to say the tree

         22  is dead because it doesn't have a single leaf on it,

         23  okay. But here we end up having certain standards.

         24  So, how is it going to inform the public of what our

         25  policy is in the City of New York?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Well, I would

          3  think that when the Council is finished legislating

          4  in this area, they may consider Councilman Stabile's

          5  bill, as well as others, giving the City additional

          6  responsibilities. That would be the time to publish

          7  something and to give it to home owners, and a

          8  little tag that you could put on their doorknobs of

          9  their homes saying your tree -- have we done that?

         10  We have all sorts of information that we prepared,

         11  the issue is one of distribution.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STERN: And with

         14  resources to print these things, these little door

         15  tags, which is the best way to get it out, we will

         16  do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: You have

         18  had resources in the past for which you have done a

         19  terrific inventory of all the trees in the City.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STERN: We did. This is

         21  the first tree census in history.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: The

         23  question is, how do you then take that and do the

         24  linkage that the Chairman is talking about to the

         25  homeowner, and that's the next challenge.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STERN: It is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Very quickly. We

          6  have everybody. Council Member Nelson, go ahead. You

          7  are a Committee member. And then Freed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just briefly,

          9  I am glad we reached some sort of a compromise in

         10  this area, because I'm sure we all had plenty more

         11  to say and probably would have been here until who

         12  knows what time today. And I do believe we never had

         13  a better friend of trees than Star Quest, a/k/a

         14  Henry Stern, and Brooklyn Parks Commissioner Julie

         15  Spiegel, as well.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Thank you, Sea

         17  Hunt.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: You're

         19  welcome. Sea Hunt, if you remember it.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STERN: He chose it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Noach is too

         22  young.

         23                 Overall the issue, and any

         24  environmental issue as well, is fairness, and in any

         25  environmental concern, and that's where we've
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          2  reached a level today. I just wanted to make that

          3  statement.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

          6                 Council Member Freed. Forty-five

          7  seconds you have.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, I will

          9  keep it very quick, too.

         10                 I am glad to see we have come to some

         11  agreement on this. As having gone through a very sad

         12  incident recently that I know Star Quest is aware

         13  of, where we had a 20-year-old tree and some other

         14  trees chopped down wrongly by a contractor, however,

         15  it actually happened. We ended up with some spindly

         16  trees back for it, and I have to tell you that there

         17  is no way that it makes up for it at all. So, I am

         18  glad that we can get around that and especially

         19  we've got a definition of, you know, a dead tree, or

         20  what a really dying tree is all about.

         21                 I do also have some concerns about

         22  the question of the sidewalks, and private

         23  homeowners, particularly those who can't afford it,

         24  and I would hope that one thing that we could

         25  clarify here is clearly if the Parks Department

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  wasn't sure what DOT's, what policies are, it is

          3  highly unlikely that the homeowners will know until

          4  they get hit with the bill. So, I think it is

          5  incumbent on all of the City agencies to work that

          6  out so that we know, because the last thing we don't

          7  want to do is find that home-owners are discouraged

          8  from allowing trees to go in front of their property

          9  because they don't know what they are going to be

         10  responsible for or because they are buying into, you

         11  know, several thousand dollar bills.

         12                 So, I think we have to work that out,

         13  and hopefully with Margarita's bill and some of the

         14  other bills that are coming up we can work that out

         15  in a fair way that will increase trees in the City,

         16  keep them healthy, and encourage people to have more

         17  trees, at the same time not penalize people,

         18  particularly those who can't afford it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         20  Eisland, Council Member Michels, and then we end

         21  that discussion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         23  very much, Mr. Chair.

         24                 First, I want to discuss probably the

         25  worst tree cutting down in the City by anybody that
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          2  I can remember, which was on Mosholu Parkway, and

          3  Commissioner Stern helped to preside over a

          4  replacement.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STERN: That was in the

          6  Koch Administration.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Yes.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STERN: The Mosholu

          9  massacre.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Exactly

         11  right.

         12                 But that proved to me not too long

         13  ago the fact that you can replace trees. While the

         14  trees on Mosholu Parkway that were unfortunately cut

         15  down erroneously will never look like what those

         16  trees looked like so many years ago, the tree

         17  replacement now has been quite some time, it's

         18  probably almost two decades since that happened, or

         19  15 years, and there is a grace and a beauty to the

         20  replacement trees that actually were put in, though

         21  they were probably the caliber that we are talking

         22  about today. So, you can replace trees. It's

         23  something that I didn't truly believe at the time.

         24  If the word tree-hugger is an epilation that some

         25  people think is a pejorative, I do not think it's a
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          2  pejorative, and I stand up and I raise my hand to

          3  being a tree-hugger.

          4                 In the Bronx certainly we have had a

          5  tremendous amount of sensitivity, and I want to just

          6  mention our Parks Commissioner Bill Castro, who at

          7  the drop of a hat, when he gets a call from the

          8  Community Board, myself or from an individual, that

          9  a tree is under siege by somebody without a permit,

         10  or who is doing something that appears to be

         11  improper, he or his staff are out there immediately.

         12  Before him it was Paul Berizzi, who is sitting here,

         13  who is the first administrator of Van Cortlandt

         14  Park, who set that standard as well. It may be

         15  different in Manhattan, as frequently happens, than

         16  in the boroughs outside of Manhattan, as far as

         17  permission for trees, we have not run into that

         18  problem in the Bronx. People call, we don't have

         19  enough trees to go around to place them on private

         20  property, and obviously we would like more. We would

         21  also like more climbers and pruners, which is always

         22  my mantra at the budget time, as well, to take care

         23  of the trees, but generally speaking, I think the

         24  attention, the replacements, and the addition of

         25  trees, at least in my district, has been excellent.
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          2                 I would like to say that I share the

          3  same problems as Council Member Stabile. For a long

          4  time, it's not just seniors that have the terrible

          5  burden of roots and various other things pushing up

          6  their sidewalk, it's anybody who has to bear, not

          7  only the expense, but also receiving all kinds of

          8  notices and then receiving fines. The responsibility

          9  has to be shifted there when it is a tree that is

         10  put in or owned by the City of New York, and, again,

         11  not just for seniors or people of limited means, I

         12  think that the City has a responsibility. And I look

         13  forward to the further discussion of that bill.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         15  Michels, and then we end this discussion.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         17                 Star Quest, I have to say, I know

         18  your sensitivity when you were in the Council, and

         19  you were a great Council Member, we shared offices

         20  together and I know how sensitive you were to these

         21  issues, but I come here as the Chairman of the

         22  Environmental Committee, because I am responsible

         23  for the oversight of the care of the City of New

         24  York's clean air, and I know when we lose, as you

         25  have stated, some hundreds of thousands of trees in
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          2  the City, it affects the clean air of this City, and

          3  that's why you must be vigilant. Some people may be

          4  inconvenienced by it, but the fact of the matter is

          5  trees keep our air clean. We need it. And I just

          6  feel also, everybody is mentioning their borough

          7  commissioners, HRA, Adrienne Benepe (phonetic) and

          8  Heather and Jane Shackett (phonetic) from my area

          9  have kept my neighborhood one of the most beautiful

         10  neighborhoods in the City of New York, and of course

         11  you take special pride having been born and lived in

         12  my district.

         13                 But I think you are to be commended

         14  for the great work you have done in preserving

         15  trees. I know you are under fire, a lot of people

         16  are criticizing you, but I know in your heart what

         17  you are doing is protecting the environment of this

         18  City and for that you are to be commended. And every

         19  child who suffers from asthma or is sick from air

         20  quality knows that you are their protector and I

         21  appreciate it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STERN: Can I just say
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          2  one sentence?

          3                 What we try to do is create an

          4  economic disincentive for people taking down trees,

          5  and precisely how that should be done I think we

          6  have reached agreement on.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. That's why

          8  we're here.

          9                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

         10                 Okay, we are going to have now, the

         11  way I am going to set it up is, Paul Berizzi, come

         12  up and do a short presentation, and then I am going

         13  to hear from the homeowners afterward who are

         14  affected by this.

         15                 I think I want to introduce Paul as,

         16  remember the Koch line, I'm a liberal with common

         17  sense. People look at some people of some advocate

         18  organizations, you know, they don't care about

         19  anything, but I met with Paul, Paul is obviously an

         20  advocate and a strong, someone who cares about the

         21  environment but someone with common sense. So, Mr.

         22  Common sense and Mr. Environmentalist, welcome to

         23  our Committee.

         24                 MR. BERIZZI: Okay, I know you don't

         25  swear people in anymore but I would just like to
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          2  testify that June Eisland is in fact a tree hugger,

          3  Kathryn Freed is a tree hugger, there she is, I

          4  worked with her on the SoHo trees, and she took on

          5  the Landmarks Commission. I happen to know you are

          6  because we have worked together on this, and I think

          7  Councilman Michels is, and I learned today that

          8  Margarita Lopez is, so I don't think, in fact, I

          9  know, sir, that the issue today is not about trees.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Wait a second.

         11  Please.

         12                 MR. BERIZZI: The issue today is not

         13  about trees, nor is it about Commissioner Stern's

         14  very laudable policy and programs to get more trees

         15  planted. I believe the question is was the Basal

         16  Area Replacement Formula the right way to do that?

         17  Was it fair to taxpayers and property owners?

         18                 Anyway, so I just want to point that

         19  out, that, again, I have not heard anything from any

         20  side of this issue that was about I don't like

         21  trees.

         22                 If I may, sir, in the form of a

         23  demonstration --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, absolutely.

         25                 I want the Committee members, if you
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          2  haven't seen this presentation before, it pays to

          3  look at it because it gives you exactly what it is

          4  all about.

          5                 MR. BERIZZI: Folks back there, this

          6  is a 12-inch tree cut at breast height, okay? Now,

          7  your Administrative Code right now says that at a

          8  minimum you must plant at least four three-inch

          9  trees in replacement. But it says at a minimum,

         10  there is no upper limit. Therefore, the Commissioner

         11  lawfully in 1994 said, well, I would like wood for

         12  wood compensation, which is one way to look at it,

         13  but as Chairman Dear has now suggested, what is to

         14  prevent a future Commissioner from saying, well, on

         15  top of that I will take all of these and I will take

         16  all of these because all the law says is at a

         17  minimum I get, I can take 400. So I want to be very,

         18  very clear about what we are talking about here.

         19  This is the best part of the show.

         20                 This is a tree. This is another tree.

         21  And, by the way, if you wondered what to do with

         22  those art history textbooks from college, here is

         23  the answer. We've got three trees there, but under

         24  the Basal Area Replacement Formula that was being

         25  employed, what your bill does, sir, is to merely say
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          2  to all taxpayers, depending upon the condition of

          3  that glass, of that tree, you will pay accordingly.

          4  And what it says is, in fact, if your tree is in

          5  perfect condition, then in fact you owe us full

          6  wood-for-wood replacement, but only one in ten

          7  trees, according to the Parks Department data, is in

          8  excellent condition, and, in fact, I believe about

          9  15,000 are reported dead, and tens of thousands are

         10  in poor condition, and, therefore, you should, in

         11  fact, pay less, you should pay what, in effect, the

         12  tree is worth, and that is what your bill does.

         13                 For those tree people in the room, it

         14  is based on the Felt-Spicer, or International

         15  Society of Arboriculture method, but the Chairman

         16  very wisely took out the part of the ISA formula

         17  that takes an automatic deduction for trees in urban

         18  areas, you lose points just because it is planted in

         19  a city, and that is not in this bill.

         20                 Furthermore, the ISA formula on which

         21  it is based is used by two-thirds of the cities in

         22  the United States and Canada, so this is not

         23  something that came out of whole cloth, it is a

         24  very, very reasonable measure well within what the

         25  existing standards are. Well, I guess that's the dog
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          2  and pony show.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The bill that is

          4  before us today, that you had a tremendous amount of

          5  input, and I'm glad to take your input, would you

          6  say that is a fair bill, an equitable bill,

          7  something that is good for more trees and fair to

          8  people, the homeowners as well?

          9                 MR. BERIZZI: I think particularly the

         10  latter, sir. It is fair to taxpayers of this City.

         11                 There are many, many ways to get more

         12  trees planted in this City and you well know that

         13  the Council has always been in the forefront of

         14  adding money to the budget, and if it is the wisdom

         15  of this Council and this City to plant more trees,

         16  you can put more money in the budget to do it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And your

         18  organization would be supportive of present bill

         19  that is before us today?

         20                 MR. BERIZZI: Yes, sir. And you spoke

         21  to our Chair about that before.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         23  much. I just need it for the record.

         24                 MR. BERIZZI: And Mr. Chairman and Mr.

         25  Stabile and Mr. Oddo and whomever, I just want you
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          2  to know that Mitchell Schwarz and I, along with

          3  Chairman Dear, are working in another way to address

          4  your problem.

          5                 The only reason, sir, that tree roots

          6  heed sidewalks, is because they cannot grow where

          7  they want to grow. Naturally trees roots grow

          8  sideways and down, but because of the way we build

          9  sidewalks in this City, the tree roots have no

         10  choice but to grow up, and with the measure that we

         11  are talking about, about changing the standard for

         12  how the Department of Transportation builds

         13  sidewalks, it would significantly reduce tree roots

         14  heaving sidewalks because the tree roots will be

         15  allowed to go where they want to go.

         16                 And I would just say, though, that

         17  the policy as is is very much like this here. In

         18  other words, the City comes in and says, can I plant

         19  a tree in front of your home? It doesn't take care

         20  of it, doesn't come in and prune the roots, and then

         21  when it heeds the sidewalk comes along and says,

         22  well, you've got to spend thousands of dollars to

         23  repair it, and that, I agree, does discourage tree

         24  planting, but with a change in the specifications

         25  and for those of you who know we are talking along
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          2  the lines of the structural soil --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 I just would like to call upon, we

          6  heard so much about this gentleman, so we might as

          7  well bring him forward, Mr. Chera. And Mr. Franco

          8  and Mr. Sitt, if you all want to come up to the

          9  table together so you can, for the record, testify.

         10                 And then after this we are going to

         11  take a vote on the bill that's before us, and then

         12  we will take more testimony.

         13                 MR. FRANCO: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Jack Franco. I thank you for having us here

         15  today. I'm not a public speaker, so if I appear to

         16  be a little nervous, please bear with me.

         17                 I am a tree hugger, as I heard in the

         18  room today, as I am a people hugger. I rarely hug

         19  dead bodies, I don't hug dead trees.

         20                 I am a homeowner that has a tree in

         21  front of my house that is virtually dead. It is all

         22  stumps, and it is supplying none of the benefits

         23  that were described very much here today, which I

         24  truly and my family truly enjoys.

         25                 A lot of our vacations are planned
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          2  around different types of horticulture. We go and we

          3  visit and we do our autumnal trips. Anyhow, you

          4  know, the simple process of taking a tree down and

          5  replacing it with something beautiful is just an

          6  impossible task, something that I have, you know,

          7  pretty much given up on until I heard about today's

          8  meeting and was invited to come, and I chose to

          9  come, be present and show up for something, instead

         10  of sitting home on the couch and saying I hope it is

         11  all done for me.

         12                 On another note, I am one of those

         13  people that were hurt by the sidewalks. If you all

         14  take a look at my teeth, they are not mine. This was

         15  sold to me by a dentist, I continue to go to the

         16  dentist, and, you know, this is not one of the

         17  reasons I was here today, but I just heard about it,

         18  but when I was nine years old, I hit a little bump,

         19  followed by a second bump, which is about this big,

         20  it was on a Sunday, it was in the summer, and I had

         21  ran back to the house with my teeth hanging, my

         22  parents hysterical crying, because of this accident,

         23  and what was I doing? I was riding my bicycle. I am

         24  not a maniac, you know, I was just a kid. You know,

         25  this is one of the topics that was brought up here
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          2  today. It's not just the older people that have a

          3  financial burden, but some of these are true

          4  hazards, and they are not attended to all that

          5  quickly.

          6                 I guess I don't have much else to

          7  say, except that I do love trees. I would love to

          8  take a tree in front of my home down, I would love

          9  other people to be able to do it, as long as we

         10  replace them. I love them, I want to see more trees,

         11  but things should be reasonable and somewhat

         12  equitable.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just identify

         15  yourself for the record.

         16                 MR. CHERA: My name is Isaac Chera.

         17  Thank you for having me here today.

         18                 I tried to do the right thing by

         19  applying to the Parks Department to have a tree

         20  removed. I have been approached by many people, they

         21  said they could take it down for us, and we don't do

         22  things that way. I have been very patient. It is not

         23  a matter of wanting a bigger driveway, as the Parks

         24  Commissioner has suggested that that's what we

         25  wanted to have our bigger cars fit down that
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          2  driveway, it actually encroaches on the driveway.

          3  It's very dangerous. I am a father of four children.

          4  I believe whole-heartedly in the beauty of the

          5  trees, I would love to see a beautiful tree just

          6  moved over a little bit. I have no problem

          7  replanting it. In the odd chance that we are able to

          8  get into the driveway, and then trying to get out is

          9  actually a danger, because it obstructs the view of

         10  oncoming traffic. In fact, my wife almost got into

         11  an accident trying to get out of that driveway, so

         12  we decided not to even try and use it anymore. I,

         13  again, believe in the wonderful job that the

         14  Commissioner has done, the parks are fantastic, I

         15  frequent them with my children. However, there

         16  should be some standard and some formula that is

         17  reasonable to the taxpayer to be able to remove a

         18  tree that is causing a problem for them.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I just for the

         21  record want to say that he is one of the reasons of

         22  the of the genesis of this bill today, and we

         23  finally came to an agreement which everybody agrees

         24  upon, it's something that I think it's win/win for

         25  everybody, and I'm glad that you held out, and you
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          2  finally see the fruits of your tree. And hopefully

          3  some beautiful tree is in front of your home.

          4                 Anyone else want to testify?

          5                 MR. SITT: Good afternoon. My name is

          6  Eddie Sitt. I recently, a couple of years ago,

          7  purchased a lot in Brooklyn, tore down two

          8  broken-down homes and built a beautiful home. When

          9  we went to build that home, when we started making

         10  the plans, there were two huge trees in front of the

         11  house, humungous, they got to be 100 years old, so

         12  we wanted to put the driveway in a certain place, we

         13  went and made the plans, and we couldn't build the

         14  house, because the way the driveway fell out, it

         15  fell out on one of the trees. It didn't work. And

         16  then we redid the plans and we built the house a

         17  little bit differently, put the driveway on the

         18  other side and left the trees be, because the word

         19  on the street was don't even think about it. If

         20  someone gets arrested stealing a car, even if

         21  murder, they get off. Take a tree down illegally,

         22  you go to jail. That's the word on the street,

         23  everyone knows that. So we built the house a little

         24  differently.

         25                 During the construction, when they
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          2  finally erected the house and this Spanish tile roof

          3  went on, we noticed that the tree was growing onto

          4  the roof. So, as the tree grew, it started growing

          5  onto the roof, it starting cracking the Spanish

          6  tile. So, we called the City, we said, listen, this

          7  tree is now on top of the house. They came down,

          8  they looked, they said, listen, it's not our

          9  problem. We cut if it's electric lines, not if it is

         10  touching your house. And so it started damaging the

         11  roof, and during the two, three-year construction

         12  the roofer had to come back and the leaders and

         13  gutters had to be replaced and so on and so forth.

         14                 So, we don't know what to do. The

         15  City didn't -- I mean, first let's talk about trees.

         16  Tree lovers, you guys all hug trees, I hug and I

         17  kiss trees. I have a house in New Jersey, it has one

         18  of the most magnificent gardens ever seen in the

         19  United States, I will tell you right here. No one

         20  can tell me that they love trees like I do and a

         21  garden like I do. However, I can't have this

         22  humungous, two humungous structures in front of my

         23  house, and the squirrels coming into the attic and

         24  running. And as the electrician is running wires,

         25  the squirrels are eating the wires. It's a total
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          2  disaster, and the City won't comply.

          3                 So, finally, I had my wife call the

          4  City and tell them, listen, you gotta come down here

          5  and at least trim the tree. If you can't cut it

          6  down, trim it. So, about a month later a gentleman

          7  shows up, he says I was sent from the City to cut

          8  down your trees, he trimmed -- excuse me, he trimmed

          9  the trees. He trimmed the trees away from the house.

         10  He finished. He came back the next day and he said,

         11  listen, I need to get my fee. So, my wife said what

         12  fee? You are the City. No, no, there is a fee over

         13  here. You have to give me $6,000 and you have to

         14  give me $3,000 to my name is check, and $3,000 in

         15  cash. My wife brought me downstairs, what is it for?

         16  He said, listen, I have to take care of the City

         17  because, you know, they told me to trim, but we

         18  don't trim, we are not supposed to trim, and I

         19  couldn't argue with the guy because he was the size

         20  of a tree, so we had to take care of this. And all

         21  the bribery and everything that goes along with the

         22  City here. So, I don't know who we are thanking, I

         23  don't know who is who exactly, but I have not had

         24  such good experience so far. But we will continue.

         25                 So, now we have these two big trees
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          2  in front of our house and he trims them. Now we call

          3  the City, we say, listen, these things, we had an

          4  insurance person come down to assess the house for

          5  value of insurance of the house, she came down, she

          6  said, you know, these two trees are very dangerous,

          7  they are dead, they are going to fall on your house

          8  one day, this is going to cost you a few million

          9  dollars damage to your house and you are not

         10  insured.

         11                 I said so put it in the policy

         12  because I believe that you are right, they are dead.

         13  She said there is no insurance for this. You cannot

         14  insure because it is a City property, you cannot buy

         15  insurance. I said what happens? She said, if it

         16  falls you are finished. Forget about the damage to

         17  people, God forbid, if it's going to damage, a few

         18  million dollars damage. I said, okay, what do we do?

         19  We call the City. Guy comes down, he looks, he says,

         20  listen, you're right. You see over there up on top,

         21  there is three leaves. We don't remove it unless

         22  there are no leaves. You have three leaves or more,

         23  this has to stay. Well, I told him, listen, take

         24  down the trees, I will put you 12 -- you want to

         25  talk about the size, three inches, I will put 12
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          2  small trees. This is ridiculousness, ridiculousness.

          3  There got to be something more reasonable. This is a

          4  great City, I just don't understand. So, I urge you

          5  all, that you heard me, you heard the other speakers

          6  over here, please take into consideration and do

          7  something that -- we have spoken about the broken

          8  sidewalks 12 times already, my father was walking

          9  down the block, his neighbor has a tree that

         10  uprooted the sidewalk, he tripped, he got hurt. It

         11  happened before. Come to Brooklyn. I urge you, come

         12  to Brooklyn, 75 percent of the sidewalks that are

         13  lifted up and cracked, is because of the trees.

         14  These trees over there, 100. 75, 80 years old, it

         15  has to be. They grow, precious water, we will talk

         16  about my sewer line. He didn't believe that it eats

         17  the pressure water, sewer line - what is he talking

         18  about? I had a situation, it started going into the

         19  sewer line, into the water pipe, it had to go for

         20  water, ripped up the cement, ripped up everything,

         21  it cost me $15,000 to put a new sewer line,

         22  everything, did the City ever come? So, there is

         23  reality to this. So, this has to be heard, this has

         24  to be addressed. I have been calling Noach Dear now

         25  for two years about this situation. Take care of it,
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          2  take care of it, and he has been doing his best. But

          3  I understand that the Parks Commission, whoever that

          4  is, is very, very difficult, they are very strict,

          5  but listen --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If you don't mind,

          7  if I can interrupt, because we have to move on.

          8                 MR. CHERA: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That's why we are

         10  going to be voting for a bill, as you just

         11  concluded, we are voting for a bill which will bring

         12  you some relief, and also bring you new trees.

         13                 MR. CHERA: Thanks, Noach.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         15                 Anyone else? That's it? Okay. Thank

         16  you very much. Thank you.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         18  AUDIENCE: We want to be heard before the bill.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: After the vote,

         20  because all of you were here in opposition of 676-A,

         21  which is not being voted on today. We are voting on

         22  a new bill. So, if you are in opposition of the new

         23  bill, then you are welcome to speak. 676-A is not

         24  being voted on today. A new bill the Counsel will

         25  now discuss will outline to the members which they
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          2  have before them will be voted on today.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

          4  AUDIENCE: Well --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Excuse me. You are

          6  out of order.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: What I would

          8  like to do right now is kind of take you through the

          9  basics of the new bill so that everybody in the room

         10  understands what the bill has in it.

         11                 The bill starts out with a

         12  replacement method called Basal Area Replacement

         13  Formula, and that basically is a cross section of

         14  the tree that you are removing, measured at a height

         15  of four and a half feet off the ground. It's similar

         16  to what Mr. Berizzi was talking about with

         17  wood-for-wood replacement with his model.

         18                 Then the bill discusses the condition

         19  of the tree that is being removed. It provides

         20  definitions and details for what an excellent tree

         21  is, which you would be required to replace the full

         22  basal area replacement formula, full wood-for-wood,

         23  for an excellent tree, and it takes you through

         24  good, fair, poor and dead trees, and that is the

         25  guidance for how many trees you will have to
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          2  replace.

          3                 The bill also sets out a 30-day

          4  replacement obligation, and it requires that the

          5  person doing the planting, the replacing of the

          6  trees have to replace the trees during the fall or

          7  spring planting season so that the trees are planted

          8  in a healthy environment at the right time of year,

          9  and if that is not possible, then if it is not

         10  possible to do it within 30 days because that is not

         11  within a planting season, it is going to be done

         12  within the 30 days of the start of the next planting

         13  season.

         14                 The bill then talks about locations

         15  at which trees are removed but cannot accommodate

         16  the number of the placement trees that the formula

         17  within the bill provides for, and determines that

         18  the number of trees that can be accommodated at that

         19  site are required to be planted at that site, the

         20  remaining trees that are required into the

         21  replacement formula, will be in consultation with

         22  the Commissioner and the developer or individual

         23  doing the replanting. The Commissioner and that

         24  person will decide on an alternate appropriate

         25  location as close to the subject property at which
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          2  the trees were removed as possible. The remaining

          3  trees will be planted there.

          4                 The final major change in the bill

          5  regards the bond that a developer or an individual

          6  doing construction must post in order to ensure that

          7  they replace the trees.

          8                 The provision now reads that the bond

          9  shall be equal, in an amount equal to the aggregate

         10  cost that the City would go to if the developer or

         11  individual does not replace the trees. Whatever it

         12  would basically cost the City to do the replacement

         13  will be the amount of the bond, and that is

         14  basically what this bill details right now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Members are all

         16  clear? Any questions?

         17                 Okay, roll call.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dear.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Aye.

         20                 I just want to thank the

         21  Administration. I want to thank Josh Filler and the

         22  entire staff, and in particular, our staff who has

         23  done a yeoman's job, my counsel, the supervisor of

         24  that counsel, Kathy Cudahy, and everybody has really

         25  gone out of their way, they worked very hard on this
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          2  bill, and we finally have come to something which I

          3  think is fair. And it is in line with what the

          4  Speaker has said all along, we can't have somebody

          5  arbitrarily make decisions and charge whatever they

          6  want, and we can't have separate foundations, monies

          7  going to a bank account and that we don't have

          8  control of. We have to have control and there has to

          9  be laws and there has to be a system that is

         10  accepted without anyone at the helm deciding what

         11  they want to do in their control.

         12                 So, I am glad finally that we have a

         13  bill that we can all agree upon and will come to

         14  fruition. So, I vote aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Eisland.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Freed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: If I may be

         19  excused to explain my vote?

         20                 First, I am glad that we have come to

         21  some agreement on this between the Council and

         22  between the Parks Department.

         23                 I would want people in the audience

         24  to know that there have been a lot of phone calls

         25  and a lot of negotiations going on prior to this
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          2  meeting back and forth to try and come to this

          3  agreement that probably was not necessarily obvious

          4  here today.

          5                 I do apologize because I can't stick

          6  around. I have conflicting meetings. I would if I

          7  could.

          8                 And I also want to take this

          9  opportunity, because I didn't before when I was

         10  speaking, to thank Adrienne Benepe, as the Borough

         11  Superintendent of Manhattan, who I do think does a

         12  great job, and also to the Parks Department. And

         13  having said that, I would like to be a co-sponsor,

         14  and I vote aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Miller.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I request

         19  permission to explain my vote.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

         22  thank my community for calling me in order to

         23  clarify this issue and get accurate information on

         24  the question of this bill, and under no circumstance

         25  I will go for a bill that will eliminate trees in my
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          2  community or any other community, the opposite is

          3  the truth. I want to increase them, but I want a

          4  fair and square deal for everyone in this City, and

          5  asking taxpayers to pay money to accounts that we

          6  don't even know what they are for, that we don't

          7  even know if the money is reinvested in our

          8  communities, is not the way to go.

          9                 Therefore, I vote yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rodriguez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: May I be

         12  excused to explain my vote?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 Let me begin by saying that when I

         17  walked in this morning I thought I was going to vote

         18  no on a bill today. And I had many concerns, and I

         19  want to thank the Chairman for having come up with a

         20  compromise with the Administration that makes sense

         21  for the people of the City of New York.

         22                 Like Margarita said, like Council

         23  Member Lopez said, this was an issue that was really

         24  thought out -- and Councilwoman Freed, this was an

         25  issue that when we walked in today we were all
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          2  thinking about, we all received the calls, we all

          3  sat here and debated the issue before. I was in the

          4  hearing next door, but I knew what was going on, and

          5  I want to say that the work that was done today here

          6  is really what goes on when government gets together

          7  and tries to get things done so that the people

          8  benefit. And I want to thank the Chairman again, and

          9  I vote aye.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: May I be

         13  excused to explain my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I, too, along

         16  with my colleague, Angel Rodriguez, was going to

         17  vote no on this until I heard that there was a

         18  compromise between the Commissioner, who spoke very

         19  eloquently, prior to and today, as well, on this

         20  particular matter, in the fairness involved, without

         21  just for no reason just saying we are going to go

         22  this way, caliper, or go this way basal, or whatever

         23  it is, but come to a compromise that saves as many

         24  trees as possible. The older I get, the more I know

         25  I love trees. We have to save those trees, and, yet,
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          2  not be out of our minds with it. So, I am glad that

          3  the Commissioner seems to have agreed with the

          4  Administration, with the Speaker and the leadership

          5  of the Council and the rest of the Committee. I vote

          6  aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stabile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: May I be

          9  excused to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

         12                 I also have been bombarded with phone

         13  calls telling me to support the basal method, which

         14  they felt was the best environmental method of

         15  replacing trees and planting trees.

         16                 I also came here today to give you a

         17  no vote. I am happy that the Administration and the

         18  Council did come to a workable agreement. But I

         19  would just like to make it known before I vote, I

         20  want my bill 632 -- 623, I'm sorry, to be heard on

         21  the roofs, sidewalks, sewers and everything else,

         22  also. So, I will concede and vote today yes on this

         23  bill. Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         25  the affirmative, none in the negative, with no
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          2  abstentions, the item is adopted. Please sign the

          3  reports.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          5  much. I have before me a list of people who want to

          6  testify, and these are people who are in opposition

          7  of 676-A. The bill that we just passed now is not

          8  676, it is a different version of 676-A.

          9                 I would like, if those who want to

         10  testify, I don't know if you want to testify in

         11  opposition?

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         13  No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. So, what I

         15  will do is I will call you up a few at a time, and

         16  we will try to limit your remarks so we can get

         17  through as many as I can, and if those who want to

         18  give written testimony, I will agree to written

         19  testimony, to make part of the record, so I am going

         20  to call you four at a time that I have in front of

         21  me.

         22                 Elizabeth Lorris Ritter. Jodie Colon.

         23  No, she left. Okay. Bruce McInnes. Susan Gooberman

         24  and Paul Kurzner. Okay, Mr. Kurzner is not here.

         25  Jack Hoyt?
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          2                 MR. HOYT: Here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Do you want to come

          4  up to testify, or you don't want to?

          5                 MR. HOYT: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So come up.

          7                 And John Kilcullen. Jack Kilcullen?

          8  Are you here? Come up.

          9                 Okay, you can start.

         10                 MS. LORRIS RITTER: Okay, I beg your

         11  forebearance. I wrote a testimony which clocked in

         12  at three minutes, I had to, of course, change it

         13  slightly since the issue that I am addressing is a

         14  little different than what I thought I would be

         15  addressing, so I think I'm going to go about 3.20, I

         16  hope that's okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, it's not.

         18  Limit. Please --

         19                 MS. LORRIS RITTER: Good afternoon. My

         20  name is Elizabeth Lorris Ritter.  I live in

         21  Washington Heights. I am a member of Community Board

         22  12, Manhattan, and of its Executive and Parks and

         23  Cultural Affairs Committee, and I represent the

         24  Board with today's testimony.

         25                 I am disappointed that you voted
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          2  before hearing my testimony, and that of so many

          3  members of the public. We take our trees seriously

          4  in Community Board 12, twice each year, for the fall

          5  and spring planting seasons we turn over long lists

          6  to the City for establishment or replacement of

          7  street trees. The Board has gotten tree requests

          8  from commercial and rental landlords, co-op boards

          9  and tenant groups, groups of school children, civic

         10  associations, the list is very long.

         11                 When City programs are filled and

         12  City funds exhausted, the BID, the Chamber of

         13  Commerce, civic groups and private individuals have

         14  made donations to purchase trees for public spaces.

         15                 I am personally acquainted with most

         16  of the trees within two full census tracks of the

         17  Community Board 12, spanning 48 blocks of Northern

         18  Manhattan from river to river, above and below the

         19  George Washington Bridge. I walked all of these

         20  blocks in 1995 during the street tree census,

         21  measuring and identifying by species and health, all

         22  299 trees in my assigned area. People love these

         23  trees. They were so proud of the trees in front of

         24  their homes and businesses, sustaining the trees

         25  throughout that summer's terrible drought. We don't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  have yards in Community Board 12. Our street trees

          3  provide beauty, shade, oxygen and a touch of

          4  civility in an otherwise stark urban landscape. What

          5  a difference. As I turned each corner, I was filled

          6  either with a sense of calm and harmony, or despair

          7  and sadness, depending on the number and the health

          8  of the trees on these blocks.

          9                 In the five years since the census,

         10  many of these trees have been damaged or have died.

         11  Last spring I saw the main branches of two trees

         12  nearly shorn from their respective trunks by a film

         13  crew truck which parked carelessly during an

         14  advertising shoot on a tree-lined residential

         15  street. The location manager was issued two

         16  summonses for $1,000 or $1,500 each. I heard him

         17  comment that while the fines would be a cost of

         18  doing business, he would have had his crew be more

         19  careful if he had known it was going to cost him.

         20                 I have two young children and I can

         21  tell you that encouragement and role modeling are

         22  the best teachers. But negative consequences can be

         23  a powerful motivator in certain situations.

         24                 Making a person who cuts down or

         25  seriously damages an established tree bear the cost
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          2  of replacing the loss in total trunk area, as

          3  opposed to trunk diameter, in the case of a

          4  nine-inch diameter tree trunk planting 14 saplings,

          5  as is currently required, not three, as had

          6  originally been proposed, is a powerful motivator to

          7  be gentle with our trees.

          8                 I would like to close with a few

          9  words from Talmud, the 3rd through 7th century

         10  rabbinic commentary on the Torah which forms the

         11  heart of rabbinic law as a practice even today. I

         12  studied it last week for Tu Bi'Shevat, the "New Year

         13  of Trees."

         14                 Tractate Ta'anit of the Jerusalem

         15  Talmud teaches: "I myself found fully grown carob

         16  trees in the world, as my fathers planted for me

         17  before I was born. So do I plant for those who will

         18  come after me."

         19                 It is a powerful lesson even for

         20  today. It is a powerful lesson especially for today.

         21                 I am glad that you listened to

         22  arborial professionals and rejected the original

         23  damaging provisions of 676-A and have come up with a

         24  reasonable compromise.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. HOYT: My name is Jack Hoyt. I am

          3  a resident of Brooklyn for some 70 odd years. I have

          4  been an activist for 50 of those years, and I am

          5  proud to say that I was an officer for many years

          6  and still retain my officership with several of the

          7  major environmental conservation groups.

          8                 Currently I am speaking on behalf of

          9  the National Arbor Society.

         10                 I remember as a kid, a youngster in

         11  public school, we had Arbor Day. Trees were

         12  important to us. Today the only way I pay honor to

         13  my parents and to my friends is to plant a tree.

         14  Right now we plant them in Marine Park, as well as

         15  Israel. I don't like to see trees being torn down,

         16  and I say this to you, that if we could live with an

         17  eye for an eye, there is no reason to remove a tree

         18  without thinking of an inch for an inch.

         19                 So, gentlemen, on behalf of the trees

         20  which have no voice in the City of New York, please

         21  think about that very carefully.

         22                 There was a poem. I think that I

         23  shall never see a poem as lovely as a tree. I

         24  learned that in public school.

         25                 Thank you, Chairman. Thank you,
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          2  gentlemen.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, go ahead.

          4                 MR. Mc INNES: My name is Bruce Mc

          5  Innes. I am the President of the Tree Care

          6  Consultancy of New York, a New York City-based

          7  consulting company. I am a certified arborist. I am

          8  also a member of the American Society of Consulting

          9  Arborists. I am on the Region II Planning Committee

         10  for New York Relief, and although I am not

         11  representing any of those organizations today, I

         12  hope to bring a reasoned voice to this hearing with

         13  my 25 years of tree involvement in New York City.

         14                 I have also served as a tree

         15  consultant on a number of City projects for DOT,

         16  DDC, DEP, Department of Parks, New York State DOT,

         17  and other agencies.

         18                 This intro had, as existed, several

         19  flaws, but the basic flaw was it's major precept

         20  that all removed trees should be placed on a caliper

         21  basis, and although that has now been amended, the

         22  fact is that simply stated, this is not a one size

         23  fits all issue. Codifying one means, even with the

         24  approval of the Commissioner, of ascertaining

         25  replacement value for trees is not fair and not in
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          2  the public interest and cannot be evenly applied to

          3  all situations.

          4                 Even the Felt-Spicer method, which is

          5  certainly a valid method, and widely used, is a

          6  procedure at which a value is only arrived at after

          7  a rather laborious means of computation.

          8                 It can't be applied largely and

          9  easily to a number of groups of trees.

         10                 There are a huge number of reasons

         11  for removing trees, some are legitimates, and may be

         12  candidates for the application of that caliper

         13  replacement method. Many are of questionable merit

         14  and must be treated as individual circumstances and

         15  be appropriate candidates for Felt-Spicer.

         16                 Others are totally bogus reasons and

         17  should be dealt with in the harshest turns, such as

         18  the application of the Basal Area Replacement

         19  Formula. In addition, perhaps to fines, penalties,

         20  even imprisonment where that is appropriate.

         21                 The Parks Department, as custodian of

         22  most of New York City's publicly-owned trees, has a

         23  huge responsibility.  They must not only protect the

         24  trees in their care, but must respond responsibly

         25  and fairly when a tree needs to be removed for a
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          2  legitimate purposes, as well as respond mightily

          3  when those who are indifferent to the safety of

          4  these trees are found.

          5                 Parks must retain the flexibility to

          6  be able to both protect the public forest, and to

          7  find the means through which necessary

          8  infrastructure, utility and other construction can

          9  proceed.

         10                 In posing the caliper replacement

         11  method, which is no longer the case, would have been

         12  wrong, just as imposing a Felt-Spicer method alone

         13  is inappropriate. The need is for the ability to be

         14  flexible, depending on the situation, and you have

         15  apparently reached a compromise. I do not have a

         16  copy of it, I don't know what it says, but please

         17  don't cause that to happen. Do not force parks to

         18  impose one formula, any formula, which will remove

         19  the flexibility, which can exist only when a variety

         20  of responses is available.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. McINNES: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: For those of you

         25  who want a copy of the law, it is right on the side
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          2  of the table there.

          3                 Next. Again, I want to limit your

          4  testimony to like two minutes, please. We have all

          5  this that we want to listen to.

          6                 Janet Kern.

          7                 MS. KERN: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: When I call you,

          9  please come up to the table.

         10                 Mike Steffens. Mike Steffens is here?

         11  Vanessa Gruen. Vanessa Guren here? No. Diane

         12  Buxbaum? Naomi, I can't get the last name. Naomi,

         13  are you here?

         14                 MS. ZURCHER: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Please, if you name

         16  was called, please come up to the table.

         17                 Is Diane Buxbaum here? Diane Buxbaum

         18  is not here.

         19                 Okay, Naomi is here. Warrie Price.

         20  Okay, not here.

         21                 Kisasi Brooks. Stephen Smith. Not

         22  here.

         23                 All right, would you start your

         24  testimony, the gentleman on my right, your left.

         25  Okay, start.
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          2                 MR. BROOKS: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Kisasi Brooks. I am testifying on behalf of the

          4  Parks Council. We are a 90-year-old non-profit civic

          5  organization, dedicated to the preservation and

          6  creation of parks, public open spaces and

          7  recreational opportunity throughout New York City.

          8                 This is the second time that the

          9  Parks Council is providing testimony on Intro. 676.

         10  The Parks Council is pleased to see that the version

         11  before us today, known as 676-A, is less harmful

         12  than the original legislation, which called for a

         13  one-for-one placement for each tree that is removed,

         14  rather than a wood-for-wood replacement, however, it

         15  still does not go far enough in protecting the

         16  environment of our neighborhoods.

         17                 As you probably know, New York City

         18  lags far behind comparable east coast cities, such

         19  as Boston and Philadelphia, in terms of tree-covered

         20  canopy.

         21                 Without a less canopy, New Yorkers

         22  cannot fully realize their health and environmental

         23  benefits that trees bring to our urban environment.

         24                 Removal of trees in the name of

         25  construction and economic development, therefore,
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          2  should not be taken lightly.

          3                 The Parks Council believes that in a

          4  densely populated, high polluted City like New York,

          5  trees should be removed only as a last resort. We

          6  believe that the Basal Area wood-for-wood standard

          7  is an appropriate standard to prevent unnecessary

          8  tree removals while providing environmental

          9  mitigation for the city's residents.

         10                 Your legislation suggests that the

         11  rules for tree replacement should be more

         12  standardized with the City's laws. We agree, but we

         13  believe that you have chosen a standard that is too

         14  weak.

         15                 If the current loosely written

         16  standards are so onerous, why is the Department of

         17  Buildings seeing a 40 percent increase in building

         18  permits since '96?

         19                 In addition, why did the Crain's

         20  business report recently report that commercial and

         21  residential construction is at its highest level in

         22  more than a decade. What we are talking about is

         23  less than 70 tree removal and replacement incidences

         24  in the past four years.

         25                 We encourage you to do the people's
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          2  work, by making the rules for tree removal and

          3  replacement more clear. Making it easier for

          4  companies and residents to build and improve New

          5  York is a laudable goal.

          6                 However, let us remember that every

          7  construction project, within New York's

          8  tightly-packed neighborhoods, is a burden that must

          9  be borne by thousands of nearby residents in the

         10  form of increased, traffic, noise and pollution.

         11                 Let us not compound that burden by

         12  denying our residents the benefit of a less healthy

         13  urban forest.

         14                 Thank you for the consideration.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         16                 Next.

         17                 MS. ZURCHER: Good afternoon, Mr.

         18  Chairperson, and Committee members. My name is Naomi

         19  Zurcher. I am a certified arborist and I am the

         20  Chairperson of New York City New York Releaf

         21  Planning Committee. New York Releaf is the

         22  educational component of New York State' urban and

         23  community forestry program. It is funded by the USDA

         24  Forest Service, and administered by New York State

         25  DEC's Bureau of Forestry Resource Management. And I
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          2  am here on behalf of that Committee.

          3                 I would like to thank you for

          4  amending this bill, and bringing it more into the

          5  21st century. But I would like to address that

          6  amendment in the context of all of these strategies

          7  that are presently in place.

          8                 Replacement formulas and other means

          9  of protection are merely tools that should be part

         10  of a management plan toolbox. In the case of New

         11  York City there is no toolbox because there is no

         12  management plan in place.

         13                 Tree replacement protection and other

         14  protection laws are lone centuries presently

         15  guarding our urban forests, and as such might seem

         16  an infringement and might seem incessively punitive,

         17  except if you understand the larger picture and what

         18  is at stake.

         19                 You have all professed today to be

         20  incredible tree lovers, tree huggers, and a whole

         21  variety of tree embracers, and that's wonderful to

         22  hear that a Committee is so enamored of this

         23  resource.

         24                 You all also seem to profess a

         25  knowledge of the miracles that trees perform for us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Please conclude

          3  your testimony.

          4                 MS. ZURCHER: Yes. One of the things

          5  that's not been taken into consideration is, who

          6  owns these trees? These trees are not owned by the

          7  person in front of whose house the tree sits. The

          8  tree is owned by everybody that sits here and the

          9  greater community that makes up New York City. When

         10  a tree is taken down, we all lose something. It is

         11  not the individual tree that works the miracles, it

         12  is the mass. The amount of total leaf surface that

         13  defines the extent of the miracle or if there is any

         14  miracle at all. At the rate at which trees are

         15  declining in this City, we will soon be deprived of

         16  the mature trees that perform most of these miracles

         17  that we presently enjoy and we obviously take for

         18  granted.

         19                 Those that have been put in place

         20  today do not solve the problem, and I ask this

         21  Committee to take the lead in establishing a task

         22  force that puts in place a management plan and the

         23  kind of ordinance that puts the muscle and the

         24  structure behind a management plan. So the trees

         25  begin to be supported based on the kind of
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          2  investment that they represent for this City.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          4                 Next, please.

          5                 Identify yourself for the record.

          6                 MS. KERN: My name is Janet Kern. I

          7  would like to express my appreciation to the

          8  Committee members who stayed to listen to us who

          9  were designated to speak after the vote took place.

         10  I can't help but be curious about why some

         11  constituents were given time to speak before the

         12  vote, and the rest of us had to wait, but perhaps we

         13  can discuss that after the meeting.

         14                 I was born in Washington Heights. For

         15  the last 33 years I have been a property owner in

         16  Little Italy, in Manhattan. During all this time

         17  I've never attended a City Council meeting, trusting

         18  the career politicians and professional experts to

         19  attend to the people's business, assuming all of you

         20  to be better informed than I am.

         21                 But in the past few years I have seen

         22  New York City transformed by trees and by parks

         23  which have been made healthy for the first time in

         24  memory, and I am here today to speak in support of

         25  the man responsible, Parks Commissioner Henry Stern,
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          2  and the policies he put in place.

          3                 I have nothing to say about newspaper

          4  reports of his purported racial bias, except that I

          5  hope they are not true. Our City cannot be a decent

          6  and civilized place if its glorious multi-racial

          7  policy cannot depend on the honor and fairness of

          8  its leadership. But I have not born witness to Mr.

          9  Stern's conduct in this regard.

         10                 What I do know for sure is that his

         11  stewardship of our urban forest has begun to make my

         12  New York City a place that the human animal can be

         13  comfortable in. Decades of political compromise and

         14  limited vision had made our urban life for all its

         15  pizaz physically and spiritually oppressive. This

         16  was a gritty, gray and hard place, and Henry Stern

         17  turned that around.

         18                 Last spring six young trees were

         19  planted on my block on Mott Street, between Houston

         20  and Prince. It was a modest event. We were not asked

         21  but we did feel blessed. Little Italy is accustomed

         22  to the City's type and to its neglect during the San

         23  Jennaro Festival, when tourists who drink too much

         24  vomit and urinate on our buildings while police look

         25  the other way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Could you please

          3  conclude your testimony?

          4                 MS. KERN: Yes.

          5                 But now when the trees came,

          6  neighbors marveled at their arrival and cheered

          7  their blooming and fretted over how to protect them

          8  if need be, from vandals and dogs and carelessness.

          9                 Our neighborhood is undergoing major

         10  transition, and some of us spoke to one another for

         11  the first time because of the little trees. The

         12  gruff workmen renovating a row of tenements swore to

         13  residents requests that runoff from a chemical wash

         14  be diverted from the soil around the saplings, but

         15  listened to an explanation of how we had never had

         16  trees on the block ever, and how they meant a lot to

         17  us, and the men are careful now. We also tell them

         18  how good their work looks and everyone agrees that

         19  the new facade and the new trees will look great

         20  together in the spring.

         21                 Plantings of trees and greenery along

         22  the West Side Highway have made it look like a

         23  thoroughfare created by digital effects, the

         24  grandest boulevard of all time.

         25                 Juxtaposed alongside one another in
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          2  New York's unmistakable skyline and unfamiliar trees

          3  both seem an apparition. I have loathed that road

          4  for a lifetime. Not anymore. It even smells good.

          5  Everyone knows that trees are the cheapest,

          6  friendliest and most cost-effective pollution

          7  control there is.

          8                 I ask that the Committee support and

          9  continue fines for homeowner removal of public

         10  trees, along with hoping that neighbors be more

         11  helpful to one another. Express appreciation, give a

         12  hand when leaves fall in the autumn, whatever.

         13                 I also ask that meaningful fees for

         14  the use of public parks by private entities, be they

         15  rock stars or churches, be continued and that said

         16  revenues accrue to the Parks Department.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         18                 Next. When you come up, please

         19  identify yourself for the record. And when you hear

         20  the sound, please, there is a two-minute timer,

         21  afterwards to please conclude your testimony.

         22                 Go ahead.

         23                 MR. SMITH: My name is Stephen Smith.

         24  I represent the Brooklyn Heights Association. I am a

         25  Governor of the Brooklyn Heights Association, and
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          2  also Chair of the Tree Committee. I came here today

          3  with a letter which opposes 676-A and relaxing the

          4  standards for replacing street trees. Obviously that

          5  is not the bill in question.

          6                 I must say I was very impressed with

          7  all of the testimony here today. It certainly

          8  appears to me that this new bill was considered in a

          9  number of lights, not only the importance of having

         10  trees in New York City, but also the rights of

         11  citizens.

         12                 So, I just would like to say that,

         13  obviously, representing part of the Brooklyn Heights

         14  Association in particular is responsible for

         15  maintaining and supporting and adding to our trees.

         16  I am in favor of legislation that makes it difficult

         17  for people to arbitrarily remove trees. Because I

         18  think what I heard today suggests to me that you

         19  passed a very balanced piece of legislation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, the next

         21  group of witnesses, Jean Silva. Christine Foreman. I

         22  guess -- someone Castellano. I can't pronounce that.

         23  Joseph Bernardo. Adam Louis Davis. Jeff Elmer. E.

         24  Kahn and Ed Eisenberg. These are the last people to

         25  testify on this issue.
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          2                 Go ahead, identify yourself for the

          3  record.

          4                 MR. SILVA: Yes, Mr. Chairman,

          5  remaining members of this City, and members of the

          6  Parks Department and other guests. I just want to

          7  say I can applaud you on your sudden change of

          8  heart. It was told to me 20 minutes before I

          9  actually showed up here. And it is absolutely

         10  imperative that we do stick to a wood-for-wood

         11  replacement formula, because it is getting tougher

         12  and tougher, as the years pass us by, with the

         13  continued development of the City of New York, for

         14  trees to survive.

         15                 But I do not think that this current

         16  local law, or piece of legislation is onerous

         17  enough, as it relates to contractors and those who

         18  are engaged in commercial enterprises.

         19                 There is a great disregard among this

         20  group for trees, a wanton disregard, and I would

         21  urge you to seriously consider increased punitive

         22  measures so that these contractors develop a better

         23  sense of how important the trees are to our urban

         24  environment and to the future of our children.

         25                 That's all I have to say.
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          2                 MR. KAHN: First of all, Noah. I want

          3  to thank you personally. It was well worth waiting

          4  for you, I want to thank you for your personal

          5  assistance in my community over in Manhattan Beach,

          6  and when the college comes back they will appreciate

          7  it more.

          8                 You know who I am, an activist for

          9  parks for 30 years and I go back. And by the way, I

         10  am Parks Chairman of the Community Board, but I am

         11  speaking as an individual, and it is very supportive

         12  of Henry and Julie, of course.

         13                 Noach, I am concerned about the

         14  curbcut issue. I don't want to see this bill taking

         15  advantage. I know you have been in the forefront of

         16  people that put illegal curbcuts in. I have followed

         17  you on that. But I hope this bill, maybe something

         18  could be monitored from the transportation, that

         19  people don't use this as an excuse to put an illegal

         20  or legal curbcut in, because we are losing parking

         21  spaces in Brooklyn, and you know it, and we all know

         22  it. So, please, put some sort of watchdog on that

         23  one. People don't go ahead, more illegal curbcuts

         24  are being put in in my community in District 15, and

         25  I think they are using it, if this tree thing comes

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  in, they are going to use it to pull out a tree and

          3  that will be it. So, let's benefit the trees, not

          4  the people who want to park, get a bigger driveway.

          5  And thank you, I liked the way you handled this. And

          6  by the way, if you are misquoted, don't blame me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          8                 Okay, Irv, you are here for a second

          9  bill we have on before us, so why don't you come up

         10  here. I will do this quickly. Are you coming to

         11  testify before or against the bill?

         12                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Against the bill.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Tell me why.

         14                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Tell you why? Okay.

         15  Let me read my testimony.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Don't read your

         17  testimony, just tell me why.

         18                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Really we feel the

         19  bill is very unclear. It seems that it would shift

         20  the entire liability of the sidewalks onto the City

         21  and the property owner would no longer be liable in

         22  court.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Do you have a

         24  suggestion for us that could be a bill that you can

         25  agree to?
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          2                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Well, I suggest that

          3  it should be -- also tracking of the trees, who

          4  would be responsible, which agency? There are so

          5  many different agencies that say you should track

          6  it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

          8                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Yes, EDC puts them

          9  in, DDC, the only trees we put in are along the

         10  highways.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So why should a

         12  homeowner be penalized for a tree that causes

         13  problems?

         14                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: You know something,

         15  we don't charge -- we really don't. We don't charge

         16  for the sidewalk.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, you give them a

         18  violation.

         19                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: We give them a

         20  violation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, you go try

         22  selling your house with a violation on record, you

         23  will never be able to sell your house. You can't do

         24  anything. It is a judgment against you basically. It

         25  stops you from doing anything, so you end up being
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          2  liable for it. And then if you end up coming and

          3  doing the sidewalk, then you go charge the

          4  homeowner.

          5                 So, tell me a way that you could

          6  agree to it. Tell me something you can agree to, if

          7  you can.

          8                 Is there anyone from the

          9  Administration who can?

         10                 You?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We are looking

         12  at 623.

         13                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: 623 is the intro I

         14  talked about last time. What we are trying to do --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That's interesting.

         16  That's because it's a republican bill as opposed to

         17  a democrat bill. Let me just tell you, 623 is not --

         18  I am saying for the record, by the way, is not going

         19  anywhere. It is not going to be heard again, it's

         20  not going anywhere.

         21                 If you want to negotiate, you will

         22  have to negotiate with my bill, okay? I've had

         23  enough of that nonsense.

         24                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Okay, is this your

         25  bill, the 858?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          3                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Okay, I didn't even

          4  realize whose bill it is. But I mean, basically we

          5  looked into it, it needs more specificity as to --

          6  it just sounds like the City is completely in court,

          7  it's up to the courts to decide the liability in a

          8  trip and fall case, it looks like this shifts the

          9  entire responsibility onto the City.  If someone

         10  trips over a damaged sidewalk by a tree, what

         11  happens if the property owner went out and actually

         12  did the initial repairs, did it incorrectly? If they

         13  put in asphalt there, if they didn't use the right

         14  -- I mean, there is so many different areas, and it

         15  was felt it was a little loose, I felt it needed

         16  more --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If someone can give

         18  us some input because I plan on passing my bill very

         19  soon.

         20                 So, I don't want you to come and tell

         21  me, well, we're against it, whatever it is. This is

         22  a very, as you can hear, members were complaining as

         23  well, the City should not be responsible, the

         24  homeowner is not to be responsible for the bill for

         25  something that was caused because the tree was
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          2  there.

          3                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: I mean, we are

          4  willing to -- you are talking about Intro. 858?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          6                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Okay. I mean, we are

          7  willing to codify.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, we are talking

          9  about my bill.

         10                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Oh, I didn't know, I

         11  am not talking about your bill. That's where I'm

         12  confused. I was talking about Council Member Lopez'

         13  bill. Okay, there is confusion here. We are talking

         14  about a different bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Mine is 856, which

         16  is not before you, and Stabile's bill is off the

         17  record, so I didn't even have to need you to --

         18                 MS. LOEWENSTEIN: And this was Lopez

         19  -- I'm sorry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: 858, which we are

         21  going to go with her bill because it makes sense,

         22  despite what the Commissioner said. But that's not

         23  in --

         24                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: What we want to do,

         25  we agree that the City should be responsible for any
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          2  damage caused by hydrants by --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, so we are

          4  going to draft the bill --

          5                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: I mean, anything the

          6  City damages, the City should be responsible for. It

          7  should not be the responsibility of the property

          8  owner. That's why we are actually working on

          9  codifying the original bill, which you say is no

         10  longer going to be brought up, which was 623. I have

         11  to look at the other bill before I can speak on it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: All right.

         13                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Sorry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No problem. Thank

         15  you very much, Irv.

         16                 MR. LOEWENSTEIN: Okay, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We worked out this

         18  legislation which is a fair bill which will allow

         19  for more trees and allow for homeowners to replace

         20  trees that are damaged, that are old and have an

         21  opportunity to have more trees rather than less

         22  trees. I regret and I am sorry that we had to be the

         23  target of attacks, lies and vicious attacks by

         24  opponents, I don't know what they were opponents of,

         25  or what they were for, but human beings have rights,
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          2  too, and I think the last two weeks, the attacks

          3  that were against us was uncalled for, and I will

          4  not ever tolerate that as a chair in protecting this

          5  institution.

          6                 So, this concludes it. Finally we

          7  have a bill and we have a law, which will be helpful

          8  to us.

          9                 This concludes the meeting, and the

         10  meeting is adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 1:45 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 15th day of February 2001.
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